

UKSEDS Constitution

2 March 2014

Contents

1 Title	2
2 Objectives	2
3 Charitable Affiliations	2
4 Membership	2
5 Branches	2
6 Officers	2
7 Trustees	3
8 Finance	3
9 AGM	4
10 Alteration of the Constitution	4

1 Title

1. The name of the organisation shall be “UK Students for the Exploration and Development of Space”, herein specified as, “UKSEDS”.

2 Objectives

1. UKSEDS shall act as a non-profit making forum for the communication and exchange of ideas between students, educational establishments, industry and the general public, with the aim of developing and promoting interest in space technology and space-related subjects.

3 Charitable Affiliations

1. From time to time and in the best interest of UKSEDS the membership may vote to affiliate to a charity with similar aims and objectives. The nature of the affiliation may be defined by a Memorandum of Understanding. Each full member shall have a vote and a simple majority of those voting shall be required (voting may be electronic). A similar vote shall be required to withdraw from such an affiliation, unless the charity in question itself decides to withdraw.
2. Where such an affiliation exists or comes into being the committee are responsible for ensuring that all relevant requirements of the current Charities Act and all other relevant legal and regulatory requirements relating to charities are complied with. The committee must make any such required changes to the Rules and Regulations on a timely basis. Where an affiliation ceases such additional rules and regulations will be removed.

4 Membership

1. Membership is open to anyone in accordance with the Rules and Regulations which may be amended by the committee from time to time as required

5 Branches

1. Branches may be established in accordance with the Rules and Regulations

6 Officers

1. The affairs of UKSEDS shall be managed by a committee whose members have been elected at an AGM. In extraordinary circumstances voting may be electronic.

2. This committee should comprise of the following:
 - (a) Chair
 - (b) Vice-Chair
 - (c) Secretary
 - (d) Treasurer
3. These roles are explained within the Rules and Regulations.
4. Any nominee for the position of Chair of the UKSEDS National Committee must be an existing member of the UKSEDS National Committee. If no such person stands for election, then this requirement shall be withdrawn.
5. Other committee roles are permitted.
6. The committee have the power to co-opt any suitable UKSEDS members (as defined in the Rules and Regulations) to serve on the committee until the next AGM. Such members may attend committee meetings and take part in discussions, but do not have a vote.
7. Further details regarding the removal of committee members, quorum, powers and administrative matters related to the committee are set out in the Rules and Regulations.

7 Trustees

1. The Board of Trustees will consist of the executive of UKSEDS (as outlined in the Rules and Regulations) and at least one and up to two representatives of the wider UK space sector. The later to be selected by the committee and approved by the membership at the next AGM.
2. The role of the Board will be to provide advice and support as necessary to the committee. The committee will retain responsibility for the day to day running of UKSEDS.

8 Finance

1. UKSEDS will be financed by membership fees, sponsorship, grants, sale of service or goods by UKSEDS, donations and such other methods as the committee may from time to time deem appropriate.
2. The income of UKSEDS shall be applied solely towards the promotion of the objectives.
3. Committee members may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses paid from their own money on behalf of UKSEDS.

4. Committee members should not receive payment or fees for their services as a committee member or benefit from any other financial transactions with UKSEDS.
5. Committee members may benefit from UKSEDS projects and activities on the same basis as other members, without privilege.

9 AGM

1. The AGM will be held once a year at a venue and time decided by the committee. The membership of UKSEDS must be given reasonable notice of the venue and time.
2. The business of the AGM will include:
 - (a) Reports on the activities of UKSEDS given by the committee and any other relevant persons.
 - (b) A new committee shall be voted in.
 - (c) Any other business raised at the meeting.
3. Major actions should be taken only after passing a vote. Voting rights are set out in the Rules and Regulations.

10 Alteration of the Constitution

1. Alterations to the constitution must be voted for by the membership of UKSEDS, as defined in the Rules and Regulations, requiring a simple majority of those attending or participating. This may be at an AGM or otherwise. Notification of the change must be given to the membership at least 2 weeks before such a change. Voting and consultation may be electronic.